
1 of 3 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

June 17, 2015 10:00 AM 
 

Board Room, 2nd Floor of the Airport Terminal Building  
200 Fred Kane Dr. Suite #200 

Monterey Regional Airport 
 

(Unless you are a public safety official, please turn off your cell phone or place it on vibrate mode during the 
meeting.  Thank you for your compliance.) 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Any person may address the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board at this time.  Presentations should not 
exceed three (3) minutes, should be directed to an item NOT on today’s agenda, and should be within the 
jurisdiction of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board.  Though not required, the Monterey Peninsula 
Airport District Board appreciates your cooperation in completing a speaker request form available on the staff 
table. Please give the completed form to the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Secretary. Comments 
concerning matters set forth on this agenda will be heard at the time the matter is considered.) 
 
 
E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS    (10:15AM – 10:20AM Estimated) 
 
(The Consent Agenda consists of those items which are routine and for which a staff recommendation has been 
prepared.  A Board member, member of the audience or staff may request that an item be placed on the deferred 
consent agenda for further discussion.  One motion will cover all items on the Consent Agenda.  The motion to 
approve will authorize the action or recommendation indicated.) 
 
Approve 1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 13, 2015 
 
Approve 2.   Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 18, 2015 
 
 
F. DEFERRED CONSENT AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
G.       REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS        (10:20AM-11:45AM Estimated)  
 
Presentation       1. Monthly Update on the Runway Safety Area (RSA) Project by Kimley-Horn 
   and Associates 



2 of 3 

 
Presentation 2. Summary of Change:  Comparison of the Final FY 2016 Operating/Capital Plan 

and the Draft Plan Presented at the June 3, 2015, Budget Workshop 
 
Adopt 3. Resolution No. 1639, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Adjustment 

of Rates and Charges at the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Fiscal Year 
2016 

 
Adopt 4. Resolution No. 1640, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Fiscal Year 

2016 Salary Schedule Listing Salary Ranges and Pay Steps for the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport District 

 
Adopt 5. Resolution No. 1641, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Operating 

Budget and Capital Budget of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Fiscal 
Year 2016 

 
Presentation 6. Concept of Non-Aviation Property Development / Rehabilitation 
 
Adopt 7. Resolution No. 1642, A Resolution Approving the Employment Agreement for 

Executive Director Between the Monterey Peninsula Airport District and Michael 
La Pier  

 
Discussion /       8. Establish a Procedure to Respond to the 2014/15 Grand Jury Report 
Action  
 
Adopt                    9. Resolution No. 1643, A Resolution Approving the Transfer of the Lease 

Agreement with Del Monte Aviation (DMA) and MPAD and the Lease 
Agreement between Monterey Jet Center (MJC) and MPAD to Monterey Fuel 
Company (MFC) 

 
Discussion           10.  Status of Del Rey Oaks Committee Assignment 
  
                                                                              
H. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS                     (11:45AM – 12:00PM Estimated) 
 
(The board receives department reports which do not require any action by the board)  
 

 
                                                                                               LUNCH BREAK (12:00PM – 1:00PM Estimated)  
 
 
I. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS           (1:00PM –1:30PM Estimated) 
 
(Report on meetings attended by Board Members at Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s expense - AB1234) 

 
a. Standing Committees:  

i.  Local Jurisdiction Liaison  Directors Miller & Searle 
ii.  Budget and Finance Directors Miller & Sabo  
iii.   Air Service, Marketing, Community Relations Directors Leffel & Nelson  
 

b.   Ad-Hoc Committees: 
i. Executive Search  Directors Sabo & Miller  
ii.  Community Affairs  Directors Sabo & Leffel  



3 of 3 

iii.   Airport Property Development & Leases  Directors Nelson & Miller 
iv.  Noise Mitigation  Director Sabo & Nelson   

 
c. Liaison/Representatives:  

i. Local Agency Formation Commission Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  
ii. Regional Taxi Authority Director Leffel    Alt: GM Greer 
iii.   Transportation Agency for Monterey County Director Sabo    Alt: Nelson  
iv. Water Management District (Policy Advisory) Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  

 
 
J. CLOSED SESSION             (1:30PM –2:30PM Estimated) 
 
 

1. REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (Government Code Section 54956.8) the Board will 
meet with Real Property Negotiators, General Manager and District Counsel, regarding the 
property identified as 2965 Monterey-Salinas Highway, Monterey, CA 93940. 
 
 

2. POTENTIAL LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)) the Board will meet with 
the General Manager and District Counsel regarding potential litigation – one case. 

 
 
K. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  
 
 
L. PENDING REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

• Discussion of holding elections in-house (District Counsel to research) 
• Purchase of Board Laptops  
• Leakage Study 
• Soundproofing the Board Room / Better quality speaker(s)   
 

 
M. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDAS 
  
(Any Board member may request the Board of Directors to instruct staff to report back to the Board at a future meeting 
concerning any matter or place a matter of business on a future agenda. Approval of such requests will be made by motion.) 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA DEADLINE 
 
All items submitted by the public for possible inclusion on the Board Agenda or in the Board packet must be 
received by 5:00 P.M. on the Monday before the first Wednesday of the month.  This agenda is subject to 
revision and may be amended prior to the scheduled meeting.  A final Agenda will be posted outside the District 
Offices in the Terminal Building at the Monterey Regional Airport 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Upon request and where feasible, the Monterey Peninsula Airport District will provide written agenda materials 
in appropriate alternate formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings. In order to allow the District time 
within which to make appropriate arrangements, please submit a written request containing a brief description 
of the materials requested and preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service desired as far as possible 
in advance of the meeting. Requests should be sent to the District Secretary at 200 Fred Kane Drive, Suite 200, 
Monterey, California 93940.  



1 of 4 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                      May 13, 2015 10:00AM, BOARD ROOM 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
 
Chair Sabo called to order the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. Directors Leffel, Searle, and 
Nelson were present. The following District officers were present: Board Secretary Posey, Auditor Merritt, 
General Manager Greer and District Counsel Huber. Director Miller was absent. Director Leffel arrived 
at 10:10am.  
 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Director Sabo Led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
Chair Sabo announced that the Budget Workshop is scheduled for June 3, 2015 at 1:30pm.  
 

1. Introduction of New Employee 
 

Name                Department                       Position       
Brandon Segovia                               Public Safety            Police Officer  
 

Brandon Segovia was out of town and was not able to attend the meeting. This item will be moved to 
a future meeting.  
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None  
 
E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS     
 
(The Consent Agenda consists of those items which are routine and for which a staff recommendation has been 
prepared.  A Board member, member of the audience or staff may request that an item be placed on the deferred 
consent agenda for further discussion.  One motion will cover all items on the Consent Agenda.  The motion to 
approve will authorize the action or recommendation indicated.) 
 
Approve 1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 8, 2015 
 
Approve 2.   Minutes of the Special Meeting of April 8, 2015 
 
Approve 3. Minutes of the Special Meeting of April 15, 2015 
 
Director Nelson moved to approve Items E.1., E.2. and  E.3. Director Searle seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
F. DEFERRED CONSENT AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 
 
None 
 



2 of 4 

G.       REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS         
 
Presentation    1. Monthly Update on the Runway Safety Area (RSA) Project by Kimley-Horn 
   and Associates 
 
Kevin Flynn, Kimley Horne & Associates, and Chris Morello, Project Manager, presented Item G.1. 
to the board.  
 
Public Comment 
Tony Tollner, Managing Partner with Tarpy’s, asked the Board if the Airport has a system in place to 
save and/or recycle water.  
 
Approve    2.      Lease Extension for Rio Restaurants Corporation (Tarpy’s) 
 
Tom Greer, General Manager, presented Item G.2. to the board.  
 
Director Leffel moved to end the discussion regarding Item G. 2. Director Nelson seconded the motion.  
 
Director Nelson moved to approve Item G.2. Director Leffel seconded the motion. The motion passed  
by a roll call vote 3-1. (Director Miller absent - Chair Sabo voted “no”)  
 
Presentation  3. Revenue Review and Comparison between Open-Entry Taxi Operations and 
                                   The Exclusive Taxi Service with Central Coast Cab Company.  
 
Jerry Merritt, Accounting Manager/Controller, and Ken Griggs, Operations Manager, presented Item 
G. 3. 
 
Adopt     4.      Resolution No. 1638, A Resolution to Withdraw From Agreement For 

the Joint Exercise of Powers to Operate and Maintain a Regional Incident 
Support Vehicle 
 

Jerry Merritt, Accounting Manager/Controller, presented Item G.4. 
 
Director Leffel moved to adopt Resolution No. 1638. Director Searle seconded the motion. The motion  
passed unanimously by a roll call vote 4-0.  
 

RESOLUTION NO.  1638 
A RESOLUTION TO WITHDRAW FROM THE AGREEMENT FOR THE JOINT EXERCISE OF 

POWERS TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A REGIONAL INCIDENT SUPPORT VEHICLE  
 

 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Airport District has been a party to the “Agreement for 
the Joint Exercise of Powers to Operate and Maintain a Regional Incident Support Vehicle” 
(hereinafter “Agreement”) since the inception of the Agreement on December 1, 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Airport District has not had an opportunity to use the 
Regional Incident Support Vehicle in several years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3.3 of the Agreement allows for a Party to the Agreement to withdraw from 
the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Airport District contracts with the City of Monterey for the 
provision of fire services and thereby has alternatives for receiving the services provided by the 
Agreement; and 



3 of 4 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT, That the Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
exercises its option to withdraw from the “Agreement for the Joint Exercise of Powers to Operate and 
Maintain a Regional Incident Support Vehicle” effective as immediately as prescribed (sixty (60) days 
following June 30th, which immediately follows the date of notice, in this instance August 29, 2015) in 
Section 3.3 of the Agreement. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 
PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT: This 13th day of May, 2015, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: DIRECTORS:  Leffel, Nelson, Searle, Sabo      
NOES: DIRECTORS:                   
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:       
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:  Miller              
            

                                                                             
H. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS                      
 
(The board receives department reports which do not require any action by the board)  
                                                                                               
I. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS            
(Report on meetings attended by Board Members at Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s expense - AB1234) 

 
a. Standing Committees:  

i.  Local Jurisdiction Liaison  Directors Miller & Searle 
ii.  Budget and Finance Directors Miller & Sabo  
iii.   Air Service, Marketing, Community Relations Directors Leffel & Nelson  
 

b.   Ad-Hoc Committees: 
i. Executive Search  Directors Sabo & Miller  
ii.  Community Affairs  Directors Sabo & Leffel  
iii.   Airport Property Development & Leases  Directors Nelson & Miller 
iv.  Noise Mitigation  Director Sabo & Nelson   

 
c. Liaison/Representatives:  

i. Local Agency Formation Commission Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  
ii. Regional Taxi Authority Director Leffel    Alt: GM Greer 
iii.   Transportation Agency for Monterey County Director Sabo    Alt: Nelson  
iv. Water Management District (Policy Advisory) Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  

 
 
J. CLOSED SESSION        
 
 

1.  REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (Government Code Section 54956.8) the Board will 
meet with General Manager and District Counsel, regarding the property identified as 100 
Sky Park Drive, Monterey, CA 93940. 

 
  

2. REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (Government Code Section 54956.8) the Board will 
meet with Real Property Negotiators, General Manager and District Counsel, regarding the 
property identified as 2965 Monterey-Salinas Highway, Monterey, CA 93940. 



4 of 4 

 
3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (Government Code Section 54957) regarding the 

following position: Executive Director   
 

 
K. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  
 
Chair Sabo reported that no action was taken in closed session.  
 
L. PENDING REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

• Discussion of holding elections in-house (District Counsel to research) 
• Purchase of Board Laptops (Budget Workshop FY16) 
• Leakage Study 
• Soundproofing the Board Room / Better quality speaker(s)   
 

 
M. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDAS 
  
None  
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:27pm 



1 of 1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                                                                 May 18, 2015 8:00AM    
 
LaRiviere & Grubman PC, Building 19 Upper Ragsdale Drive, Ste. 200 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
Chair Sabo called to order the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors. Directors Leffel, Searle, Miller 
and Nelson were present. The following District officers were present: District Counsel Huber.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
None  
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None 
                                                             
E. CLOSED SESSION      
 

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (Government Code Section 54957) regarding the 
following position: Executive Director   
 

2. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE Section 54957(b), the Board will meet with the 
District Counsel to consider the employment related to the following position: District Counsel 
 

3. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE Section 54956.9(d), the Board will meet with 
District Counsel regarding potential litigation – one case. 

 
F. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  
 
Chair Sabo reported that no action was taken in closed session 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:20pm  



1 
 

          AGENDA ITEM: G-2 
          DATE:  June 17, 2015 

 
 
TO:  Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of Directors 
FROM: Thomas E. Greer, General Manager 
SUBJ: Summary of Change:  Comparison of the Final FY 2016 Operating & Capital 

Plans to the Draft Plans Discussed at the June 3, 2015, Budget Workshop 
 
BACKGROUND. On June 3, 2015, the Board of Directors and staff of the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport District met and conducted a FY 2016 Budget Workshop.  At the conclusion of 
the workshop, the board expressed their support for the FY16 Financial Plan as presented and 
asked that District Counsel provide information regarding compensation (per the Executive 
Director contract) to the Controller. 
 
SCOPE. A final review was conducted by the Controller on Monday and Tuesday, June 8 
and 9.  Final adjustments to the operating and capital plans (and components thereof) were 
prepared and are now presented.   
 
RATES & CHARGES: The recommended rates and charges were reviewed; there are no 
changes.  Staff recommends that these rates and charges be implemented on July 1, 2015. 
 
SALARY SCHEDULE: The staff recommends that the 1% increase be extended to all 
unrepresented employees on July 1.  Changes to the salary schedule have been made to show 
the base compensation, automobile allowance and technology allowance for the Executive 
Director. 
 
OPERATING REVENUE: 
 
After review, only four (4) operating revenue categories were modified.  RON Fees were 
modified due to an Alaska scheduling change effective November 1, 2015.  May 2015 
concession revenue was received from Avis, Budget, Republic Parking and Monterey Highway 
Self-Storage/Flight Way Self-Storage.  Operating revenue was reduced due to the changes 
shown below. 
 

FINAL DRAFT
FY 2016 FY 2016

FULL YEAR FULL YEAR
PLAN PLAN DOLLARS %

RON Fees 73,917.00          89,607.00          (15,690.00)  -17.5%
Rental Car Concessions 1,081,197.00     1,075,805.00     5,392.00     0.5%
Parking Concession 822,661.00        820,042.00        2,619.00     0.3%
Self-Storage Concession 269,425.00        270,347.00        (922.00)       -0.3%

(8,601.00)    

CHANGE

 



2 
 

 
OPERATING EXPENSE: 
 
After review, there were modifications to operating expense categories in only one department – 
Finance & Administration.  These adjustments (reductions and increases) were based on the 
review of the Executive Director’s contract and a review of utility expenses.  Changes made to 
operating expenses in Finance & Administration are presented below. 
 

FINAL DRAFT
FY 2016 FY 2016

FULL YEAR FULL YEAR
Finance & Administration PLAN PLAN DOLLARS %

Salary & Wages 729,702.00        727,413.00        2,289.00     0.3%
Employer SSI 44,199.00          44,072.00          127.00        0.3%
Employer MC 10,577.00          10,549.00          28.00          0.3%
Workers' Comp Insurance 19,865.00          19,685.00          180.00        0.9%
CalPERS Retirement 66,843.00          76,303.00          (9,460.00)    -12.4%
Life Insurance 1,120.00           718.00              402.00        56.0%
Personnel Recruitment & Pre-Employment Expense 25,000.00          16,500.00          8,500.00     51.5%
Telecommunications 2,500.00           3,500.00           (1,000.00)    -28.6%
District Vehicle Fuel 1,200.00           2,000.00           (800.00)       -40.0%
Utilities - Electricity 236,000.00        233,000.00        3,000.00     1.3%
Utilities - Natural Gas 47,500.00          50,500.00          (3,000.00)    -5.9%

266.00        

CHANGE

 
 
OTHER REVENUE / EXPENSE: 
 
After review, there were modifications to two (2) lines in the Other Revenue / Expense 
categories. 
 

FINAL DRAFT
FY 2016 FY 2016

FULL YEAR FULL YEAR
PLAN PLAN DOLLARS %

Grants - FAA 21,218,324.00   23,381,348.00   (2,163,024.00)  -9.3%
Depreciation / Amortization Expense (7,874,456.00)    (7,855,626.00)    (18,830.00)      0.2%

(2,181,854.00)  

CHANGE

 
 
A line-by-line comparison of all revenue and expense categories is also included. 
 
 
CAPITAL PLAN: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the previously presented FY 2016 Capital Plan that 
encompasses both the co-funded portion and the District-funded portion.  Upon final review, the 
acquisition cost of a utility pick-up was bumped up from $36,500 to $39,500.   
 



3 
 

During the review of future District-funded projects, listed projects were re-evaluated based on 
current and anticipated operational needs.  Changes included: 
 
The following capital acquisition was added and prioritized for 2017: 
 Acquire Paint Machine – Line/Pavement Marking System – Maintenance - $42,000 

 
The following capital acquisitions/projects were pushed back one year: 
 Sidewalk – Perimeter of District Employee Parking Lot (FY 2018), 
 Handheld AVI Scanners (FY 2017), and 
 Customer Baggage Carts (FY 2017). 

 
A final copy of the capital plan for FY 2016 follows the line-by-line presentation of revenue and 
expense.  A plan for District capital acquisitions and projects is also included. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATING REVENUE. Decrease of $8,601 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATING EXPENSE. Increase of $266 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATING INCOME. Decrease of $8,867  
 
IMPACT ON CAPITAL EXPENSE.  Increase of $3,000 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS.  Not applicable 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN.  Not applicable 
 
RECOMMENDATION. Adopt Resolution Numbers 1639, 1640 & 1641 as presented. 
 















1 of 1 

          AGENDA ITEM: G-3 
          DATE: June 17, 2015 
 
TO:  Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of Directors 
FROM: Thomas E. Greer, General Manager 
SUBJ:  Resolution No. 1639, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Rates and 

Charges at the Monterey Regional Airport for Fiscal Year 2016 
 
BACKGROUND.  The Monterey Peninsula Airport District is an enterprise activity, charged with 
attaining a revenue level sufficient to recover the costs of operating, maintaining and improving 
airport facilities.  The District periodically adjusts its rates, charges, and fees in order to achieve its 
goal of recovering the cost of operating and maintaining the Airport from rents, fees and charges 
paid by tenants and users of Airport facilities. 
   
The District has adopted a combination of airfield residual and terminal compensatory cost 
recovery methodologies.  These methods, standard practice in the airport industry, are used by 
airports to fairly proportion airport costs to the tenants and users of airport facilities. 
 
SCHEDULE.  Annex A to Resolution No. 1639 provides a comprehensive listing of rates and 
charges for Fiscal Year 2016.  Implementation of the updated rates and charges will be effective 
on July 1, 2015. 
 
IMPACT ON REVENUES.   Implementation of the rates and charges, as set forth in Annex A, will 
cause the District to meet a level of revenue that funds operating expenses, planned capital 
improvements and debt service in Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS.  Implementation of the rates and charges, as set forth in Annex A, will 
allow the District to provide a professional level of service to its customers and the traveling public 
at large.  Failure to implement these new rates would require a significant reduction in the level of 
service currently provided. 
 
RECOMMENDATION.   Adopt Resolution No. 1639, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the  
Rates and Charges at the Monterey Regional Airport for Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 of 4 

AGENDA ITEM: G-3 
          DATE: June 17, 2015 
                   
 

RESOLUTION  NO.  1639 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE ADJUSTMENT OF RATES AND 
CHARGES AT THE MONTEREY REGIONAL AIRPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 

 
WHEREAS, periodic adjustment of rates and fees is appropriate in order to achieve the 

District’s goal of recovering the cost of operating and maintaining the Airport from rents, fees 
and charges paid by tenants and users of Airport facilities in fair proportion to their respective 
use, and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has set its airside rates in accordance with the airfield residual 

cost recovery methodology, and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has set its terminal area rental rates in accordance with the 

terminal compensatory cost recovery methodology, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT, the following rate and fee schedule (SEE 
ANNEX A) shall be implemented effective July 1, 2015. 

 
1.0  Aviation & Aviation Related Rates and Fees. 
 
1.1  Landing Fees. 
 
1.1.1  Air Carriers. Provided a signed agreement between an air carrier and the 
District exists and except as exempted from landing fees by the provisions of Section 1.1.5 of 
this Resolution, there shall be paid to the District a landing fee for all air carrier operations 
(including unscheduled charter operations) landing at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The landing 
fee is assessed per thousand pounds of certificated gross landing weight.  Air carriers operating 
without a signed agreement will pay a landing fee equal to two (2) times the established rate. 
 
1.1.2  Freight Forwarding/Cargo Carriers. Except as exempted from landing fees by 
the provisions of Section 1.1.5 of this Resolution, there shall be paid to the District a landing fee 
for all freight forwarding/cargo carrier operations (including unscheduled charter operations) 
landing at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The landing fee is assessed per thousand pounds of 
certificated gross landing weight or per landing. 
 
1.1.3  General Aviation Aircraft. Except as exempted from landing fees by the 
provisions of Sections 1.1.3.1 and 1.1.5 of this Resolution, there shall be paid to the District a 
landing fee for all general aviation aircraft operations involving aircraft having a certificated 
gross landing weight of six thousand pounds (6,000 lbs) or greater landing at the Airport (SEE 
ANNEX A).  The landing fee is assessed per thousand pounds of certificated gross landing 
weight. 
 
1.1.3.1  Based Aircraft Exemption. All general aviation aircraft based at the Monterey 
Regional Airport shall be exempt from the landing fees set forth in Section 1.1.3 of this 
Resolution.  General aviation aircraft based at the Airport shall be deemed to include general 



2 of 4 

aviation aircraft for which monthly hangar rentals or tie-down fees are being paid to the District 
or to a fixed base operator holding a valid lease or rental agreement with the District for the 
conduct of fixed base operations at the Airport.  In addition, general aviation aircraft owned or 
leased by such a fixed base operator shall be deemed to be general aviation aircraft based at 
the Airport. 
 
1.1.4  Helicopters. Except as exempted from landing fees by the provisions of 
Sections 1.1.4.1 or 1.1.5 of this Resolution, there shall be paid to the District a landing fee for all 
helicopter operations landing at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The landing fee for helicopters is 
assessed per landing. 
 
1.1.4.1  Based Helicopter Exemption.  All helicopters based at the Monterey 
Regional Airport shall be exempt from the landing fees set forth in Section 1.1.4 of this 
Resolution.  Helicopters based at the Airport shall be deemed to include helicopters for which 
monthly hangar rentals or tie-down fees are being paid to the District or to a fixed base operator 
holding a valid lease or rental agreement with the District for the conduct of fixed base 
operations at the Airport.  In addition, helicopters owned or leased by such a fixed base operator 
shall be deemed to be helicopters based at the Airport. 
 
1.1.5  General Exemptions. Aircraft landing at the Airport due to mechanical failure or 
other in-flight emergency shall be exempt from the landing fees set forth in this Resolution.  
Military aircraft or aircraft operated by the state or federal government shall be exempt from the 
landing fees set forth in this Resolution.  Medical emergency/medical evacuation aircraft shall 
be exempt from the landing fees set forth in this Resolution. 
 
1.2  Remain-Over-Night (RON) Fee. 
 
1.2.1  Air Carriers. Provided a signed agreement between an air carrier and the 
District exists, there shall be paid to the District a RON fee for all air carrier aircraft (including 
unscheduled charter aircraft) that remain over night at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The RON 
fee is assessed per thousand pounds of certificated gross landing weight.  Air carriers operating 
without a signed agreement will pay a landing fee equal to two (2) times the established rate. 
 
1.2.2  Freight Forwarding / Cargo Carriers. There shall be paid to the District a RON fee 
for all freight forwarding/cargo carrier aircraft (including unscheduled charter aircraft) that remain 
overnight at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The RON fee is assessed per thousand pounds of 
certificated gross landing weight. 
 
1.3  Apron Fee. 
 
1.3.1  Air Carriers. Provided a signed agreement between an air carrier and the 
District exists, there shall be paid to the District an apron fee for all air carrier aircraft (including 
unscheduled charter aircraft) that park on the terminal ramp at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The 
apron fee is assessed per thousand pounds of certificated gross landing weight.  Air carriers 
operating without a signed agreement will pay a landing fee equal to two (2) times the 
established rate. 
 
1.3.2  Freight Forwarding / Cargo Carriers. There shall be paid to the District an apron 
fee for all freight forwarding/cargo carrier aircraft (including unscheduled charter aircraft) that 
park on the terminal ramp at the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  The apron fee is assessed per 
thousand pounds of certificated gross landing weight. 



3 of 4 

 
1.4  Gate Fee. Provided a signed agreement between an air carrier and the 
District exists, there shall be paid to the District a gate fee for non-scheduled (including charter) 
air carrier aircraft that use the Airport terminal facilities (SEE ANNEX A).  The gate fee is 
assessed per thousand pounds of certificated gross landing weight.  Air carriers operating 
without a signed agreement will pay a landing fee equal to two (2) times the established rate. 
 
1.5  Security Fee.  There shall be paid to the District a security fee for all air 
carrier aircraft (including unscheduled charter aircraft) that use the Airport terminal facilities 
(SEE ANNEX A).  The security fee is assessed per enplaned passenger. 
 
1.6  Hangar Rentals. There shall be paid to the District rents for District owned 
and maintained aircraft hangars (SEE ANNEX A).  The hangar rent is assessed by type and 
location of hangar, except as may otherwise be provided in a contractual agreement between 
the District (lessor) and a lessee. 
 
1.7  Aircraft Tie-downs. There shall be paid to the District rents for District owned 
and maintained aircraft tie-down spaces (SEE ANNEX A).  The tie-down rent is assessed by 
aircraft type and location of tie-down, except as may otherwise be provided in a contractual 
agreement between the District (lessor) and a lessee. 
 
1.8  Fuel Dispensing / Fuel Flowage Fees. There shall be paid to the District a 
fuel dispensing or fuel flowage fee for each gallon of fuel dispensed at the Airport (SEE ANNEX 
A).  The fuel dispensing or flowage fee is assessed by number of gallons dispensed and by type 
of fuel. 
 
2.0  Terminal Area Rents. 
 
2.1  Terminal Building and Adjacent Area Rentals. There shall be paid to the 
District rents for space in and around the Airport terminal (SEE ANNEX A).  These rents are 
paid by square foot (sq. ft.) or space basis (per month) except as may otherwise be provided in 
a contractual agreement between the District (lessor) and a lessee. 
 
2.2  Concessionaires.  There shall be paid to the District fees for the use of space 
and the conduct of business in and around the Airport terminal.  These fees may be assessed 
by square foot (sq. ft.) or space basis (per month), or may be assessed as a percentage of 
gross receipts, or a combination provided in a contractual agreement between the District 
(lessor) and a lessee or concessionaire. 
 
3.0  Non-Aviation Rents. There shall be paid to the District rents for non-aviation 
space and facilities on the Airport (SEE ANNEX A).  These rents are assessed on a square foot 
(sq. ft.) or space basis (per month) except as may otherwise be provided in a contractual 
agreement between the District (lessor) and a lessee. 
 
4.0  Future Rate Adjustments. The District may implement changes in rates and 
charges from time-to-time through the adoption of future rates and charges resolutions.  During 
the period following the adoption of this Resolution and until the effective date of a subsequent 
rates and charges resolution, District leases and rental agreements may provide for adjustments 
to rates and charges based on changes in consumer price or other indices. 
 



4 of 4 

5.0  Severability.  If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this 
Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such 
invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Resolution which can be given effect without 
the invalid provision or application and to this end, the provisions of this Resolution are declared 
severable. 
 
6.0  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect on July 1, 2015. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 

PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT:  this 17th day of June, 2015, by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  DIRECTORS:     
NOES:   DIRECTORS:  
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:    
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:    
    
 
      Signed this 17th day of June, 2015 

 

 

      William Sabo, Chair 

A T T E S T 

 

 

Tonja Posey 
District Secretary 
 













         AGENDA ITEM: G-4 
         DATE:  June 17, 2015 

 
 
TO:  Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of Directors 
FROM: Thomas E. Greer, General Manager 
SUBJ: Resolution No. 1640, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Fiscal Year 

2016 Salary Schedule Listing Salary Ranges and Pay Steps for the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport District 

 
BACKGROUND. Pursuant to public law, the Board is required to annually approve the 
schedule listing salary ranges for District employees.  This resolution authorizes and creates the 
MPAD FY 2016 Salary Schedule. 
 
RECOMMENDATION.  Adopt Resolution No. 1640, authorizing the implementation of the FY 
2016 Salary Schedule for the Monterey Peninsula Airport District. 
 



           AGENDA ITEM: G-4 
           DATE:  June 17, 2015 

       
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1640 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING  
THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 SALARY SCHEDULE LISTING SALARY RANGES 
AND PAY STEPS FOR THE MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA 
AIRPORT DISTRICT: That the compensation of all employees of the Monterey Peninsula Airport 

District as set forth and prescribed in the 2016 Salary Schedule, Listing Salary Ranges and Pay 

Steps, is hereby approved and adopted.   A copy of said schedule is attached hereto and made a 

part of by reference as though the same were set forth in full herein. 

 

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That there be filed in the office of said District, said 

Salary Schedule in accordance with and designated "Monterey Peninsula Airport District Fiscal 

Year 2016 Salary Schedule" listing salary ranges and pay steps. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 
PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT: This 17th day of June, 2015 by the following roll call vote: 

  
 AYES: DIRECTORS:     
 NOES: DIRECTORS:   
 ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:    

      ABSENT:             DIRECTORS:        
 
        
      Signed this 17th day of June, 2015 
 
 
 
      William Sabo, Chair 
 
A T T E S T 
 
 
 
Tonja Posey 
District Secretary 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 1640, adopted June 17, 2015, 

FISCAL YEAR 2016 SALARY SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE:  JULY 1, 2015

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ANNUAL

STEP 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

GENERAL MANAGER ANNUAL 145,728 151,560 157,620 163,944 170,508 177,324 184,404

PER MONTH 12,144 12,630 13,135 13,662 14,209 14,777 15,367

PER HOUR 70.06 72.87 75.78 78.82 81.98 85.25 88.66

DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER - PLANNING ANNUAL 108,600 113,184 117,828 122,436 127,032 131,676 136,272

& DEVELOPMENT PER MONTH 9,050 9,432 9,819 10,203 10,586 10,973 11,356

PER HOUR 52.21 54.42 56.65 58.86 61.07 63.31 65.52

ACCOUNTING MANAGER / CONTROLLER ANNUAL 85,248 89,028 92,820 96,612 100,392 104,172 107,976

PER MONTH 7,104 7,419 7,735 8,051 8,366 8,681 8,998

PER HOUR 40.98 42.80 44.63 46.45 48.27 50.08 51.91

HUMAN RESOURCES / RISK MANAGER ANNUAL 73,176 76,560 79,932 83,328 86,724 90,108 93,456

PER MONTH 6,098 6,380 6,661 6,944 7,227 7,509 7,788

PER HOUR 35.18 36.81 38.43 40.06 41.69 43.32 44.93

OPERATIONS MANAGER ANNUAL 60,600 63,048 65,928 68,856 71,796 74,676 80,220

PER MONTH 5,050 5,254 5,494 5,738 5,983 6,223 6,685

PER HOUR 29.13 30.31 31.70 33.10 34.52 35.90 38.57

PLANNING MANAGER / GRANTS ANNUAL 55,080 61,824 65,928 68,856 71,796 74,676 80,220

PER MONTH 4,590 5,152 5,494 5,738 5,983 6,223 6,685

PER HOUR 26.48 29.72 31.70 33.10 34.52 35.90 38.57

PLANNING MANAGER / ENVIRONMENTAL ANNUAL 55,080 61,824 65,928 68,856 71,796 74,676 80,220

PER MONTH 4,590 5,152 5,494 5,738 5,983 6,223 6,685

PER HOUR 26.48 29.72 31.70 33.10 34.52 35.90 38.57

STAFF ACCOUNTANT ANNUAL 56,304 61,212 65,928 68,856 71,796 74,676 80,220

PER MONTH 4,692 5,101 5,494 5,738 5,983 6,223 6,685

PER HOUR 27.07 29.43 31.70 33.10 34.52 35.90 38.57

OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR ANNUAL 51,768 54,612 57,516 60,408 63,240 66,156 69,000

PER MONTH 4,314 4,551 4,793 5,034 5,270 5,513 5,750

PER HOUR 24.89 26.26 27.65 29.04 30.40 31.81 33.17

MARKETING / PUBLIC RELATIONS COORDINATOR ANNUAL 51,768 54,612 57,516 60,408 63,240 66,156 69,000

PER MONTH 4,314 4,551 4,793 5,034 5,270 5,513 5,750

PER HOUR 24.89 26.26 27.65 29.04 30.40 31.81 33.17

ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST ANNUAL 47,916 50,544 53,328 56,256 59,352 62,616 66,072

PER MONTH 3,993 4,212 4,444 4,688 4,946 5,218 5,506

PER HOUR 23.04 24.30 25.64 27.05 28.53 30.10 31.77

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT ANNUAL 47,292 49,884 52,620 55,512 58,572 61,788 65,196

PER MONTH 3,941 4,157 4,385 4,626 4,881 5,149 5,433

PER HOUR 22.74 23.98 25.30 26.69 28.16 29.71 31.34

OFFICE TECHNICIAN ANNUAL 40,980 43,236 45,612 48,108 50,760 53,556 56,496

PER MONTH 3,415 3,603 3,801 4,009 4,230 4,463 4,708

PER HOUR 19.70 20.79 21.93 23.13 24.40 25.75 27.16

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT ANNUAL 35,808 37,776 39,864 42,048 44,364 46,800 49,368

PER MONTH 2,984 3,148 3,322 3,504 3,697 3,900 4,114

PER HOUR 17.22 18.16 19.17 20.22 21.33 22.50 23.73

CONFIDENTIAL ASSISTANT ANNUAL 30,600 32,784 36,060 39,336 43,716 48,072 52,452

PER MONTH 2,550 2,732 3,005 3,278 3,643 4,006 4,371

PER HOUR 14.71 15.76 17.34 18.91 21.02 23.11 25.22

PER CONTRACT

185,000

PAY STEPS:   ANNUAL, MONTHLY & HOURLY    --    FULL-TIME  &  PART-TIME

Page  1  of  2  Pages



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 1640, adopted June 17, 2015, 

FISCAL YEAR 2016 SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

PAY STEPS:   ANNUAL, MONTHLY & HOURLY    --    FULL-TIME  &  PART-TIME

MAINTENANCE MANAGER ANNUAL 69,624 73,068 76,488 79,884 83,328 86,736 90,216

PER MONTH 5,802 6,089 6,374 6,657 6,944 7,228 7,518

PER HOUR 33.47 35.13 36.77 38.41 40.06 41.70 43.37

MAINTENANCE LEAD WORKER ANNUAL 46,140 48,360 50,604 52,860 55,116 57,432 59,652

PER MONTH 3,845 4,030 4,217 4,405 4,593 4,786 4,971

PER HOUR 22.18 23.25 24.33 25.41 26.50 27.61 28.68

MAINTENANCE WORKER ANNUAL 36,444 38,268 40,176 42,180 44,292 46,500 48,828

PER MONTH 3,037 3,189 3,348 3,515 3,691 3,875 4,069

PER HOUR 17.52 18.40 19.32 20.28 21.29 22.36 23.48

CUSTODIAN ANNUAL 34,716 36,204 37,656 39,120 40,572 42,036 43,488

PER MONTH 2,893 3,017 3,138 3,260 3,381 3,503 3,624

PER HOUR 16.69 17.41 18.10 18.81 19.51 20.21 20.91

POLICE CHIEF ANNUAL 96,948 99,864 102,852 105,936 109,116 112,392 115,776

PER MONTH 8,079 8,322 8,571 8,828 9,093 9,366 9,648

PER HOUR 46.61 48.01 49.45 50.93 52.46 54.03 55.66

POLICE LIEUTENANT ANNUAL 93,672 95,604 96,372 97,728 99,096 100,440 101,796

PER MONTH 7,806 7,967 8,031 8,144 8,258 8,370 8,483

PER HOUR 45.03 45.96 46.33 46.98 47.64 48.29 48.94

POLICE SERGEANT ANNUAL 87,096 87,852 88,656 89,436 90,216 91,008 91,752

PER MONTH 7,258 7,321 7,388 7,453 7,518 7,584 7,646

PER HOUR 41.87 42.24 42.62 43.00 43.37 43.75 44.11

POLICE OFFICER ANNUAL 69,588 72,048 74,448 76,860 79,320 81,744 84,180

PER MONTH 5,799 6,004 6,204 6,405 6,610 6,812 7,015

PER HOUR 33.46 34.64 35.79 36.95 38.13 39.30 40.47

STEP 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

POLICE OFFICER 30.11 31.18 32.21 33.26 34.32 35.37 36.42

NOTE 1: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE FOR CERTAIN REPRESENTED POLICE (POA) PERSONNEL.

EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE IS:  30 college units = 2.5%, AA degree = 5%, BA/BS = 7%

NOTE 2: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR REPRESENTED (POA) POLICE PERSONNEL.

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE:  Full-Time (POA) members: $80.00 per month, Part-Time (Unrepresented): $10.00 per pay cycle (only if individual works)

NOTE 3: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE FIELD TRAINING PAY FOR REPRESENTED (POA) POLICE PERSONNEL.

FIELD TRAINING PAY:  2.5% added to hourly base pay rate for hours worked actively performing training.

NOTE 4: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE NIGHT SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY FOR REPRESENTED POLICE (POA) PERSONNEL.

NIGHT SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY IS:  2.5% added to hourly base pay rate for hours worked between 10:00 pm and 6:00 am.

NOTE 5: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE LONGEVITY PAY.

LONGEVITY PAY IS:  15 Years of Service = 2%, 20 Years of Service = 3%, 25 Years of Service = 4%

NOTE 6: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE PAGER/IMMEDIATE RESPONSE PAY FOR MAINTENANCE/CUSTODIAL POSITIONS.

PAGER PAY:  $200 per week to the indivudual responsible for pager/immediate response.

NOTE 7: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCES FOR EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT POSITIONS.

AUTO ALLOWANCE:  $650 per month to Executive Director, $450 per month to Deputy General Manager.

NOTE 8: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE TECHNOLOGY ALLOWANCE FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

TECHNOLOGY ALLOWANCE:  $100 per month to Executive Director.

NOTE 9: INDICATED SALARY RATES DO NOT INCLUDE COMPENSATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION:  $100 per meeting/day of service; not to exceed $400 per month.

HOURLY WAGE FOR PART-TIME OR TEMPORARY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS  (NO BENEFITS)

Page  2  of  2  Pages



1 of 2 
 

AGENDA ITEM: G-5 
DATE: June 17, 2015 

 
 
TO: Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of Directors 
FROM: Thomas E. Greer, General Manager 
SUBJ: Resolution No. 1641, A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Operating Budget 

and Capital Budget of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Fiscal Year 2016 
 
BACKGROUND.  The proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Operating and Capital Budgets are provided 
for your review and adoption.   
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
 

A. ENTERPRISE ACTIVITY 
 

1. Operating Revenue:        $8,384,995 
 
  2. Operating Expense:        $7,885,955 
 
   Net Income from Operations:          $499,040 
 
  3. Interest Income:             $36,390 
 
  4. Interest Expense – MPAD 2012 POB:          $97,658 
 
   Net Income:            $437,772 
 
  4. Other Revenue / Expense:     $14,063,051 
 
   Change in Net Position:     $14,500,823 
 
 

B. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM (CIP) 
 

1. Federal AIP Grants:      $21,218,323 
 

  2. Passenger Facilities Charges (PFC):      $1,985,776 
 
  3. District Contributions:             $41,880  
 
   Total Co-Funded CIP Program:    $23,245,979 
 
  4. District-Only Funded CIP / Acquisitions:        $221,500 
 
   Total FY16 CIP Program:     $23,467,479 
 
  5. Net District Contribution to CIP Program:        $263,380 
 



2 of 2 
 

    
DISTRICT EQUITY. As of June 30, 2014: Unrestricted Net Position:  $319,819.  Projection for 
June 30, 2015:  Unrestricted Net Position:  $514,057. 
 
RECOMMENDATION.  Adopt Resolution No. 1641 Authorizing and Approving the Operating 
Budget and the Capital Budget of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Fiscal Year 2016. 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM: G-5 
DATE: June 17, 2015 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1641 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE OPERATING BUDGET AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 

 
 WHEREAS, the estimates submitted to the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula 
Airport District entitled "Monterey Peninsula Airport District, County of Monterey, State of 
California, Budget - Fiscal Year 2016," and now on file in the offices of the District are hereby 
approved and adopted as the budget of the District for the Fiscal Year 2016, and 
 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the District for the Fiscal Year 2016 are hereby appropriated 
as set forth and segregated in the operating budget and the capital budget, and 
 

 WHEREAS, all annual salaries, compensations, allowances and operating expenses for 
the Fiscal Year 2016 as set forth in the operating budget shall be payable in such time, form and 
manner as is prescribed by the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Act and by Resolution No. 
1424, a Resolution Establishing Fiscal Control Policies and Procedures for the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport District, are hereby approved, and 
 

 WHEREAS, all capital expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2016 as set forth in the capital 
budget shall be payable in such time, form and manner as is prescribed by the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport District Act and by Resolution No. 1424, a Resolution Establishing Fiscal Control 
Policies and Procedures for the Monterey Peninsula Airport District, are hereby approved, 
 
 WHEREAS, all debt service expenditures, interest and principal, for the Fiscal Year 2016 
are identified and shall be payable in such time, form and manner as prescribed by contract or 
covenant, are hereby approved, and 
 

 WHEREAS, all motions and resolutions and parts of motions and resolutions insofar as 
they are in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed,  
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT, the operating plan and capital plan presented in 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2016 are hereby established and designated as in the budget and shall 
take effect on July 1, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 
PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT: This 17th day of June, 2015 by the following roll call vote: 
 
 AYES: DIRECTORS:     
 NOES: DIRECTORS:   
 ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:    

      ABSENT:             DIRECTORS:        



 

     
      
      Signed this 17th day of June, 2015 
 
 
 
      William Sabo, Chair 
A T T E S T 
 
 
 
 
Tonja Posey 
District Secretary 

































1 of 2 

                   AGENDA ITEM: G-6 
                   DATE:  June 17, 2015 
 
 
TO:  Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of Directors 
FROM: Thomas E. Greer, General Manager 
SUBJ:  Concept of Non-Aviation Property Development/Rehabilitation 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND STAFF ANALYSIS.  The changing economic landscape on the peninsula 
has revealed an opportunity for the Monterey Peninsula Airport District.  Light industrial space 
and warehouse storage space are at a premium.  
 
Mr. Clayton Gentry, owner of Airport Road Self Storage and tenant, has tendered a proposal 
that would start the rehabilitation of the north side business park.  Mr. Gentry would lease the 
ground that is currently occupied by buildings 505 and 506; he would demolish those buildings 
and replace with a facility that looks like the existing Airport Road Self Storage building.  
Diagrams/renderings are provided. 
 
The District, using Mr. Gentry’s leasehold as an anchor, can systematically reorganize and 
rebuild the existing portion of the north side business park.  The District enjoys loyal tenants, 
some who have rented space for over thirty (30) years.  Mr. Gentry will accommodate those 
tenants (505 & 506) with storage space.  The District will attempt to accommodate other tenants 
with light industrial needs. 
 
Contrary to myths and legends, the District has very little light industrial/warehouse storage 
space; most of the light industrial/warehouse storage space owned is rented.  District staff 
receives inquiries regarding rental opportunities. 
 
Just in the vicinity of the open space currently marked for “outside” or “contractor” storage, the 
District has approximately thirteen (13) acres (approximately 566,280 square feet); most of this 
space is unrented and generates no revenue.  Light industrial/warehouse storage buildings can 
be constructed. 
 
Each building would provide ten thousand (10,000) square feet of enclosed space that could be 
sub-divided and rented as four (4) individual twenty-five hundred (2,500) square feet of space.  
Paved parking with fencing would increase the foot print up to thirty thousand (30,000) square 
feet per facility.  Solar panels would mitigate the increased electricity usage; each space would 
have its own electric meter.  Gray water could provide the water for toilets. 
 
An industrial market analysis is also attached. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS.   There would be additional staff requirements for any new rental 
spaces (customer service and maintenance); however, because these facilities would be new, 



2 of 2 

maintenance would progress from minimal as the buildings age.  Customer service (properties 
management) can be minimized by “pre-contracting” or “pre-leasing” the facilities before building.  
Optimally, the properties would be leased on a five (5) year lease. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATING REVENUE.     Each ten thousand (10,000) square foot facility (paved 
parking areas included in building rental rate could be rented/leased for up to $1.00 per square 
foot/per month.  Should the District rent these spaces for $0.90 per square foot/per month, each 
facility would generate $9,000 per month/$108,000 per year operating revenue.  Six of these 
facilities could generate operating revenue up to $648,000 per year. 
 
OPERATING BUDGET IMPACT. The increase in operating revenue from restructure and 
rehabilitation of the District’s north side business park would provide cash for further property 
development, and replenish the District’s cash reserves. 
 
CAPITAL BUDGET IMPACT.  Staff continues to study the investment required to realize this 
scenario (and methods to finance). 
 
RECOMMENDATION.  Recommend that the Board embrace the concepts presented and push 
the District toward renewed economic vitality. 
 
 
 
 




















